
MINUTES 
The Regular Meeting of the  
Aberdeen Planning Board 

 
April 19, 2012                            Robert N. Page Municipal Building 
Thursday, 6:00 p.m.               Aberdeen, North Carolina 

 
 

  The Aberdeen Planning Board met Thursday, April 19, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. for their 
Regular  Board  Meeting.    Members  present  were  Chairman  Johnny  Ransdell,  Bob 
Rigsby, Joe Dannelley, and Janet Peele. Vice Chair Sarah Ahmad and Owen Gallagher 
were unable to attend the meeting. Others in attendance were Planning Director Kathy 
Liles  and  Permit  Technician  Jenni  Secrist.  Members  of  the  Public  present  wher 
Jacqueline Brooks, Sheila Murphy and Bob Stafford.   

 
1.  Call to Order: 

 
Chairman Johnny Ransdell called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 

   
2.  Approval of Agenda 

 
Staff recommends changing Special Meeting to Regular Meeting.  
 
Sarah  Ahmad  made  a  motion  to  approve  the  agenda  with  the  staff 
recommendations. 
Seconded By Owen Gallagher 
                  Vote: Unanimous 

 
3.  Approval of Minutes: 

 
a.  Minutes of the Regular meeting of March 15, 2012. 

 
Sarah  Ahmad made  a motion  to  approve  the minutes with  the  removal  of  the 
word “up” from the third page second paragraph.  
Seconded by Janet Peele 

                      Vote: Unanimous 
                             

4.  New Business 
 
a.  Special Use Permit SU#1201,  for  a Home Day Care  submitted  by  Jacqueline 

Brooks at 800 Harris Street.  
 
Mrs. Liles presented the staff report and informed the Board they will not need to 
make a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners and the Planning Board 
will be the final decision.  
 
Mr. Gallagher asked how much  space  is  required  by  the State per  child.   Ms. 
Brooks stated she was not sure of the exact amount but she did have someone 
from the State to inspect the house and they informed her that it was fine. Mrs. 
Liles stated she believed it was about 75 square feet per child. She also stated 
Staff can confirm with the Health and Human Services to make sure the amount 
of space required conforms to the 2500 square feet.  



Mr. Gallagher asked if Ms. Brooks was living at the residence now? Ms. Brooks 
stated she was  renting  the home. She explained her state consultant said she 
will have to stay at the residence for at least 3 days a week. Mrs. Liles stated that 
will be a requirement through the Town that Ms. Brooks lives at the residence in 
order for her to qualify as a home occupation. Mr. Ransdell asked if that means 
that  this would have  to be her primary  residence. Mrs.  Liles  stated  the Zoning 
Code is not that specific it just says they have to be a resident.  
 
Mr. Gallagher also asked  if  fencing  is going  to be  required. Ms. Brooks stated 
she would not be because the State told her that fencing would not be required 
because of the trees along the property line.  
 
Mr. Dannelley stated in the past we have asked to have a floor plan on where the 
25 percent of  the child  care will be given and asked  if  this would be available. 
Ms. Brooks stated when the inspector from the State was out she showed them 
what room she will use and the inspector stated that was fine.   
 
Mr.  Gallagher  made  a  motion  approving  Special  Use  Permit  SU#1201,  for  a 
Home Day Care submitted by Jacqueline Brooks at 800 Harris Street with staff 
recommendations, fencing for a play ground and a floor plan. 
Seconded by Janet Peele 
                       Vote: Unanimous 
 

b.  UDO  Conditional  Zoning  Request  CZ#1201  for  a  Child  Care  Center  in  CI 
Zoning  District  submitted  by  Genesis  Global  LLC.  Sheila  Murphy  at  354  Park 
Way Dr.  
 
Mrs. Liles presented the Staff report and explained the decision is considered a 
legislative decision and not quasi judicial decision. This request is to amend the 
UDO  and  the  zoning  map.  Board  is  creating  a  new  district  which  will  remain 
commercial  light  industrial with  the addition of a Child Care Center only on  the 
property  requested.  Not  a  blanket  Commercial  Light  Industrial  change  but  an 
addition to just the requested property. 
 
Mrs. Ahmad asked with  the  conditional  that  does  not  go with  the  exchange of 
land  right  that’s  just  with  the  activity  that  is  happening  at  the  time.  Mrs.  Liles 
stated  the Condition will go with  the  land but we will not be  removing  the other 
uses  to,  so  if  in  the  future  the owner decided  they do not wish  to have a  child 
care facility there anymore they can still have another commercial light industrial 
use at that  location. An important key thing you need to remember when you’re 
considering Conditional Zoning Districts, allows  for  the establishment of certain 
uses which because of their nature or scale have particular impacts on both the 
immediate area and the community as a whole. So you are assessing are there 
negative impact positive impacts both at a small scale and a larger scale as well.  
Mrs. Liles stated T.C. Morphis the Town attorney would like for her to but special 
infuses on this.  
 
Mrs. Liles showed a map of the property requested and the surrounding area.  
 
Mrs. Liles went over the staff recommendations and asked the Board to consider 
the following during the deliberation of all zoning requests: 
 



  (1)   All  uses  which  are  allowed  in  a  zoning  district  must  be  considered.    A 
decision  to  rezone or not  to  rezone a parcel or parcels of property cannot be 
based on consideration of only one use or a partial list of the uses allowed within 
a zoning district. 

  (2)  Zoning decisions will not be based on aesthetic considerations. 
  (3)  Requests for zoning changes will not be approved if the requested change 

will  result  in spot zoning.   Spot zoning  is a form of discriminatory zoning whose 
sole purpose is to serve the private interests of one or more landowners instead 
of furthering the welfare of the entire community as part of an overall zoning plan.  
Although changing the zoning classification of any parcel of land to permit a more 
intensive use could possibly constitute spot zoning, the test lies in its relationship 
to  the  existing  zoning  pattern  and  guidelines  of  the  local  land  use  plan.    Spot 
zoning is based on the arbitrary and inappropriate nature of a rezoning change 
rather than, as is commonly believed, on the size of the area being rezoned. 

  (4)  Zoning which  will  result  in  strip  development  will  be  discouraged.    Strip 
development is a mélange of development, usually commercial, extending along 
either  side  of  a  major  street.    Strip  development  is  often  a  mixture  of  auto
oriented  enterprises  (e.g.,  gas  stations,  motels,  and  food  stands),  truck
dependent  wholesale  and  light  industrial  enterprises  along  with  the  oncerural 
homes and  farms  that await  conversion  to commercial use.   Strip development 
may severely  reduce  trafficcarrying capacity of  abutting  streets by allowing  for 
excessive and conflicting curb cuts. 

  (5)  The  concept  of  uniformity  will  be  supported  in  all  zoning  deliberations.  
Uniformity  is  a  basic  premise  of  zoning  which  holds  that  all  land  in  similar 
circumstances should be zoned alike; any different treatment must be justified by 
showing different circumstances. 

  (6)  Zoning regulations will be made in accordance with the Town of Aberdeen 
Comprehensive Plan and designed to lessen congestion in the streets; to secure 
safety  from  fire,  panic,  and  other  dangers;  to  promote  health  and  the  general 
welfare; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to 
avoid undue concentration of population; and to facilitate the adequate provision 
of  transportation,  water,  sewerage,  schools,  parks,  and  other  public 
requirements.    The  regulations  shall  be  made  with  reasonable  consideration, 
among other things, as to the character of  the district and  its peculiar suitability 
for  particular  uses,  and  with  a  view  to  conserving  the  value  of  buildings  and 
encouraging  the most  appropriate  use  of  land  throughout  Aberdeen’s  planning 
jurisdiction. 

  (7)  Specifically, the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners should ask 
the following questions: 

    (a)  Does  Aberdeen  need  more  land  in  the  zone  class 
requested? 

    (b)  Is  there  other  property  in  the  town  that  might  be  more 
appropriate for this use? 

    (c)   Is the request in accordance with the Town of Aberdeen land 
use plan? 



    (d)  Will  the request have a serious  impact on  traffic circulation, 
parking space, sewer and water services, and other utilities? 

    (e)  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will 
result in lessening the enjoyment or use of adjacent properties? 

    (f)  Will  the  request,  as  proposed,  cause  serious  noise,  odors, 
light,  activity,  or  unusual  disturbances?    Do  standards  exist  to  govern 
these disturbances? 

    (g)  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot 
zoning hardship, violation of precedents, or need for this type of use? 

 
Mrs. Ahamad asked if Mrs. Liles can repeat what she said about the Special Use 
Permit  verses  the  Conditional  Zoning.  Mrs.  Liles  stated  when  you  are  doing 
Conditional  Zoning what  it  is  not,  it  is  not  a  combination  of  a Rezoning  and a 
Conditional Use Permit. So you are not approving a Conditional Use permit what 
you are saying  is  its okay  to have a Child Care Center on  this property  in  this 
zoning district and if  it happens this  is what staff needs to consider before they 
go into operation.  

     
Mrs.  Peele  asked  what  the  most  resent  use  for  this  building  was.  Mrs.  Liles 
stated  this building  is next  to  the plumbing building and asked Bob Stafford  if  it 
was used by Stafford as a construction office. He stated it was.  
 
Mrs. Ahamad stated where she  is having difficulty with  this,  because of  all  the 
changes, is that at one point in time we had a similar request to change a zoning 
and it was denied because it was too much of a change in the industrial district. 
Mrs. Liles stated the Board of Commissioners reversed that after some changes. 
Mrs. Ahamad stated that is her concern as she sits here the procedural part and 
the legislative part and the rules, to her it feels like it’s the same and that’s where 
she  is  having  a  problem.  Mrs.  Liles  explained  that  it  seems  the  same  but 
procedurally  it  is a  little different. With the athletic  facility  that was changing  the 
text of  the Zoning Code  itself so for every Heavy  Industrial District  in Aberdeen 
you could have an athletic facility. In this particular case you’re saying no I’m just 
looking at  the conditions for  this one property. Mrs. Ahamad asked  there would 
not  be  a  way  just  a  special  permit  verses  the  conditional  rezoning.  Mrs.  Liles 
stated right in this case if Ms. Murphy wanted to proceed and not come through 
the Planning Board staff would have to say no you can’t because it is not a use 
allowed in this district, but what we are saying on this particular property  in this 
particular district we can  find  justification  to consider  this.   Mrs. Ahamad stated 
this would not be  considered spot  zoning because  it  is  specific  for  one  type of 
activity. Mrs. Liles stated when you are considering a spot zoning issue you have 
to  look at compatible uses we’ve not changed the underling CI uses so they’re 
still compatible with CI around it and in this case okay  is  that child care facility 
compatible with the level of commercial use that close by. Mr. Ransdell asked we 
are not changing the Zoning. Mrs. Liles stated really it’s a change of the zoning 
map so know we will have instead of a CI we would have a CIC and its called a 
parallel  zoning  district  and  this  can  happen  all  over  the  map.  Mrs.  Ahamad 
question if someone from highway 5 would come in to apply there would not be a 
precedence set because you would have done this before. Mrs. Liles said correct 
that decision is sight specific. Mrs. Peele asked if all the contiguous property that 
is CI would this be an allowed use. Mrs. Liles stated no this  is  for  just  the one 



piece  of  property  and  a  new  request  will  have  to  be  made  for  the  other 
properties.  
 
The applicant Ms. Murphy added that in the future they would like to expand from 
a minimum of 45 children to 100 children but they do not have the space at this 
time and would like to expand the building to meet the required square footage.  
 
Mr. Dannelley asked has Genesis Global taken on other project of this nature in 
child care or is this a first or ground breaking for the company. Ms. Murphy stated 
yes it is a first but she has home health and group home background and she fills 
it to be very similar.    
 
Mr.  Gallagher  asked  if  they  were  going  to  be  keeping  the  rolling  doors  in  the 
front. Ms. Murphy said absolutely not that would not be safe.  
 
Mr. Dannelley asked as we consider the motions here that Mrs. Liles presented 
on motion three there are quite a few things that are going to be levied on you as 
you  consider  moving  forward  with  this  project  are  you  comfortable  with  those 
things in talking with Mrs Liles. Ms. Murphy stated she was.  
       
Mrs. Ahmad asked if the signage requires a separate zoning approval does that 
mean  the  signage  has  to  meet  the  CI  signage  approval.  Mrs.  Liles  stated 
separate zoning approval would be our standard zoning permit for any sign. 
 
Mr.  Ransdell  stated what  is  being  proposed  would  be  a  complement  for  other 
uses in that area. It would be a good draw for young working families and getting 
people to move to Aberdeen that would be a big plus. He did want to mention at 
some  point  down  the  road  as  it  meets  its  100  person  capacity  to  have  a 
conversation with DOT because at some point it may warrant a traffic signal. Mrs. 
Ahamad added to that when looking at the bicycle plan if the traffic is to increase 
would that impact the bicycle plan. Mrs. Liles stated at this point she would have 
to say no because it’s such a long range plan she does not think we are the point 
of assessing within those areas. If you look at highway 211 is identified for paved 
shoulders  for  bicycles.  Mr  Ransdell  asked  if  the  bicycle  plan  would  already 
consider that as part of their development plan. 
 
Mrs.  Ahamad  asked  how  deliveries  would  be  handled,  what  type  of  vehicles 
would you use for delivering of for example food. Ms. Murphy stated small trucks 
would be used.  
 
Owen Gallagher made a motion, subject to recommended conditions of approval, 
request number CZ# 1201 is not inconsistent with all adopted plans of the Town 
of Aberdeen  including  the 2030 Land Development Plan,  the Hazard Mitigation 
Plan, the Pedestrian Plan and the Bicycle Plan and the Green Growth Tool Box.      
Seconded by Joe Dannelley 
                     Vote: Unanimous 
 
Owen  Gallagher  made  a  motion  based  on  information  presented  by  the 
applicant,  staff,  and  other  interested  parties,  request  number  CZ#1201  does 
have  an  acceptable  level  of  impact  on  both  the  immediate  area  and  the 
community as a whole. 
Seconded by Joe Dannelley   



                     Vote: Unanimous 
 

Janet Peele made a motion  that  the Planning Board does  recommend approval of 
Application CZ#1201 to the Town of Aberdeen Board of Commissioners subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
1.  The applicant must conduct a community meeting with mailed notice complying 

with  the  requirements  of  the  Unified  Development  Ordinance  prior  to  Public 
Hearing by the Board of Commissioners. 

2.  The applicant shall submit a list of site improvements to the Planning Department 
that depict  the required  fence and handicapped parking as well as demonstrate 
layout of adequate parking for required staff and dropoffs. 

3.  Signage will require separate zoning approval. 
4.  A  copy  of  the  license  as  issued  by  the  Division  of  Child  Development,  North 

Carolina  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  shall  be  provided  to 
Planning and Inspections before operation begins. 

5.  Staff  is directed  to enter Conditional Zoning District CIC  for property  identified 
by LRK# 20040417 and 354 Parkway Lane on the official zoning map and add a 
label  for  CZ#1201  and  add  an  additional  use  “child  care  center”  to  this  CIC 
district. 

 
Seconded by Owen Gallagher  
                       Vote: Unanimous 
 

5.  Other Business 
 

a.  Update on Bike Plan. 
 
Kathy Liles presented the updates to the bike plan and the proposed changes to 
the map  including  the extension  to Colonial Heights Park. Mrs.  Liles described 
the positive and negative aspects of the bike plan. 
 
Sarah  Ahmad  made  a  motion  to  recommend  approval  of  the  proposed 
amendments to the Town of Aberdeen Bicycle Transportation Plan. 
Owen Gallagher Seconded   
                      Vote: Unanimous 
 

b.  Update on Metal Buildings. 
 

Mrs.  Liles updated  the Board on what  area allow or do  not allow metal  façade 
and let them know more research is being done.  
 

c.  Discuss revised public hearing process with the Board of Commissioners and the 
Planning Board. 

 
Mrs. Liles explained there is a way to marry the public hearing process and the 
regular meeting process of  the  planning board  into one meeting. The Planning 
Board  after  the meeting would  go  and  deliberate  and  either makes  a  decision 
that night or at your next meeting. The down side  to  this  is  the Planning Board 
may have to meet twice in one week. The upside to this process is it will lessen 
the  amount  of  time  an  applicant  will  have  to  wait  for  a  decision  it  is  also  a 
reduction in expense in staff time and in material. She explained the first project 



staff would like to make this happen is with the CVS project and staff would like 
to  schedule  that  on  May  14th.  Discussion  commenced  on  the  process  of  a 
possible meeting.     

 
With no other discussion a motion was made by Owen Gallagher seconded by 
Sarah Ahmad to adjourn the regular meeting for the Planning Board.   
 

 
6.  Meeting Adjourned:  7:15pm  
 
 
 
 
________________________        ________________________ 
Johnny Ransdell, Chairman          Jenni Secrist, Secretary  


